
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 27 October 2021 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 13th October 2021  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Islington Park Improvement 
Scheme - Anene Chiegboka  
 

(Pages 5 - 36) 

5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Greater Manchester Clean 
Air Zone - Street Lighting Column - Rob Owen  

 

(Pages 37 - 42) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Exclusion of the public  

 

 

8   Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public)  

 

 

8a Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Rough Sleepers Scheme 

- Mark Hart  
 

(Pages 43 - 52) 

9   Date and time of next meeting  
 

10:00am on Wednesday 10th November 2021 in the Salford Suite, 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 

Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board Meeting Held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

13th October 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 
Meeting ended at 10:28am 

Present in Person 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair), Merry and Youd. 

In Attendance in Person 
Carol Eddleston – Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Deborah Derbyshire Category Manager, Procurement 

Andy Devine  Parking & Road Safety Team 

Paul Gill  Senior Development Manager 

Shoaib Mohammad Assistant Director Technical Services 

Chris Smith  Head of Infrastructure 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor Kelly, 

Chris Hesketh and Anthony Hilton. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meetings held on 22nd September and 29th September were approved as a 

correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

 

5(a) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award 

– Manufacture and Installation of RHS Brown Tourist Signs on the Motorway 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval for an exception 

to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract to be awarded for the manufacture and 

installation of RHS brown tourist signs on the motorway network.  

Under the terms of the legal agreements with the RHS the City Council was obligated to deliver a 

series of off-site highway improvements, including brown tourist signage on the local and motorway 
network. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

The exception to Contractual Standing Orders was being requested for three reasons:  

Walker Signs appeared to be the only provider of this service that had the relevant National 

Highways passports and Sector Scheme Approvals to be able to access and work on the motorway 

network; appointing Walker Signs offered best value to the council as demonstrated by a cost 

comparison of recent procurement of similar signs on the local highway network and by virtue of the 

fact that Walker Signs would very likely be the installation company if another contractor was 

appointed as the principal contractor; and the timing of these works was urgent, with the temporary 

RHS directional signs needing to be removed by no later than 26 November 2021 and a tender 

exercise did not permit the City Council to comply with these timescales. Having no directional signs 

on the motorway for a period of at least two months would increase the risk of driver confusion and 

late lane changes, thereby increasing the risk of accidents occurring. 

In response to a question from the board about what appeared to be quite a last minute request for 

Procurement Board approval, it was explained that officers has been working with National 

Highways for over 18 months on securing agreement to the signs. This was much longer than had 

been anticipated and when it became clear that the permanent signs would not be in place ahead of 

the RHS opening on 18 May 2021, the City Council secured agreement to place  temporary direction 

signs on the motorway network. These were placed out on the motorway on 26 May 2021 and could 

only be up for a maximum of 6 months, meaning they need to be removed by no later than 26 
November 2021.  

It was explained that whilst Walker Signs was not the only manufacturer in the market, it was 

believed to be the only company with the relevant National Highways passports and Sector Scheme 

Approvals to be able to access and work on the motorway network. Undertaking an open market 

tender exercise therefore was unlikely to yield a more competitive price than that quoted by Walker 
Signs as Walker Signs would likely be undertaking the installation works in any case.  

As a cost comparison the City Council had recently procured Wigan Council to install a similar sign 

and passive post system on the East Lancashire Road (A580) in Wigan. The cost of this was £5,500 

for the sign, posts and foundation. The signs Walker Signs would be installing on the motorway were 

approximately twice the size of the sign on the A580 and were £11,142 per sign for the sign, posts 

and foundation. This demonstrated that Walker Signs was quoting a similar price on a pro rata basis 

as Wigan Council quoted and this was therefore a competitive quotation. The layout and extent o f 

traffic management and vegetation clearance had been dictated by National Highways and Walker 
Signs had contracted these elements of work through their own approved contractor lists.  

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved for the following reasons: 

 best value to the Council, 

 the goods and works are only obtainable from one provider and there is no other 

provider available to allow genuine competition, and 

 the supply of the goods and execution of the works are required so urgently as not 

to permit compliance with the requirements of competition, and 

(2) A contract for the manufacture and installation of RHS brown tourist signs on the motorway 
network be awarded to Walker Sign Erectors Ltd, with a value of £257,534.86.  

Page 2



5(b) Request for Approval – Contract Extension – Provision of Enforcement Services and 

Request for Approval to Initiate a Competitive Tender Process 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to extend the 

contract for the provision of Enforcement Services and to initiate a competitive tender process for 
the provision of Enforcement Services. 

Approval was granted at Procurement Board on 24th January 2018 to award the contract to NSL 

Services Ltd for on and off-street enforcement in April 2018 initially for three years with an option to 

extend for a further two years on an annual basis. A further report was presented to Procurement 

Board on 3rd March 2021 and approval was granted for the first of the two year extension period 

which expires on 31st March 2022. The report recommended that approval be given to the final year 

extension of the existing contract and that authorisation be given to start the procurement exercise.  

A benchmarking exercise had taken place to determine the implications of bringing Enforcement 

Services back in-house and the comparison had been made against the arrangement at Sheffield City 

Council which currently ran their Enforcement Service in-house. The benchmarking exercise had 

shown that the Council would receive £321,646 less revenue if it decided to bring the Service in -

house. As a result of this, combined with a number of additional operational concerns, bringing in -

house had not been pursued and the recommendation to open Enforcement Services up to a 

Competitive Tender exercise was being put forward, giving ample time to complete a robust 
procurement exercise. 

In terms of Social Value, although NSL Services Ltd was not accredited with the Living Wage 

Foundation it paid the real living wage to its employees. It had agreed to recruit locally, with their 

team currently consisting of 100% who lived in the Greater Manchester area of which 31% were 

Salford residents, in addition their staff were on a flexible working arrangement to cater for personal 

or domestic issues. 100% of promotions were internal, with 3 colleagues promoted to Senior Civil 

Enforcement Officers who would complete several courses to further develop their skills.  From 

member discussions with the Trades Unions it was understood that employees were happy with 
their NSL and their working conditions. 

Before March 2020 the level of income being generated by parking enforcement had risen year on 

year. The impact of the Covid 19 pandemic had reduced the initial level of enforcement to minimal 

cover and staff were deployed to assist in other vital areas such as marshalling Covid test centres, 

and recycling centres. The income from parking enforcement in 2020/2021 was therefore reduced, 

totalling £822,283 against a cost of £870,461. In the previous years the revenue from enforcement 

covered the cost of the Enforcement contract and made a surplus which had been increasing year on 

year. As lockdown eased indications from the last 3-4 months were that revenues were increasing to 
a level greater than pre-Covid.  

It was stressed that enforcement was not about generating income for the council but for safety and 

to minimise severe disruption to traffic movement round the city caused by indiscriminate parking.  

RESOLVED, THAT:  

(1) Approval be granted for the contract with NSL Services Ltd for the provision of Enforcement 

Services to be extended for 12 months with an estimated average per annum value of 

£977,271,  

(2) Approval be granted to initiate the competitive tender process for the provision of a new 

Enforcement Services contract with effect from 1st April 2023, and 

(3) More detail be provided to members of the board about the costings used in the 

benchmarking exercise. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
27 October 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Islington Park Improvement scheme 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Islington Park 
Improvement Scheme to Horticon Limited subject to: 

 
a) Securing delivery funding through the Department for Transport’s 

(DfT’s) Active Travel Fund tranche 3 (ATF3) award; and  

 
b) Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) approval of a 

full business case and the signing of a delivery agreement for the 
Islington Park Improvement scheme. 

 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project City Centre Bee Network – Islington Park 

Name of Successful Contractor  Horticon Limited 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £ 552,269.68 

Contract Duration  Approx. 4 months 

Contract Start Date  10/01/2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Contract End Date  06/05/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Dan Sterry 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Mini Competition 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

SCC Landscape Framework 

Funding Source Choose an item. 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above-mentioned 

contract. This report provides a progress update following the successful bid to the 
Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) which secured programme entry status for the Islington 

Park project and seeks further approval for the next steps of project delivery. The 
Salford City Centre Bee Network once completed will support the transformation of 
Salford City centre into an attractive and welcoming environment for local people, 

residents and people travelling across Salford city centre. 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

 Appendix A: Briefing report of the Strategic Director for Place to Procurement 

Board on 7 July 2021 

 Appendix B: City Centre Bee Network Overview Plan 

 Appendix C: City Centre Bee Network Delivery Strategy 

 Appendix D: Islington Park Improvement Consultation Plan 
 

 
 

KEY DECISION:  Yes  

 

Page 6



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

DETAILS:  
 

1. Background 

 

1.1 As detailed in Appendix A, Procurement Board granted permission on 7 
July 2021 for the City Centre Bee Network scheme to be tendered. For 
Phase 3 Islington Park improvement of the project, this was undertaken via 

Salford City Council Landscape Contractor Framework.  

1.2 The Salford City Centre Bee Network scheme proposal will create an 

interconnected walking and cycling network which links key trip generators 
and connections through Trinity and Islington neighbourhoods as shown in 
Appendix B. The scheme seeks to provide direct and safe routes for 

pedestrians and cyclists accessing the city centre through provision of new 
cycle facilities, new and improved crossing facilities, modal filters public 

realm improvements and cycle parking provision.  
 

1.3 Appendix C shows the strategy for delivery of the Salford City Centre Bee 

Network which has been scheduled into three different phases. These 
include: 

 

 Phase 1: Trinity Active Neighbourhood 

 Phase 2: Islington Active Neighbourhood 

 Phase 3: Islington Park Improvement 
 

1.4 This report seeks approval to award a contract to implement phase 3 of the 
City Centre Bee Network (Islington Park).  The rich and strong spirited 

community focussed Islington Park proposals will bring the park up to date 
and respond to the new development within the area. Islington Park is 
integral to the wider Salford City Centre Bee routes being proposed and 

connects to the community’s long standing and long loved Islington Park, 
which is a perfect place to stop, breath and regenerate within its urban 

setting. 
 

1.5 As shown in Appendix D, the improvement works will transform Islington 

Park into a vibrant and engaging green space that both develops and 
enhances active travel and connectivity, whilst also creating a focal point 

for the community to engage.  
 

1.6 The proposed interventions include entrance mosaic walls, cycle shelter 

and stands, pop-up event/café zone, illuminated bollards, and play area.  
 

1.7 Various nature-based solutions that will add value in the development of a 
climate resilient park are proposed for Islington Park. Other interventions 
proposed include: 

 

 A paved main walking and cycling boulevard on the western 

boundary lined to improve connectivity whilst also providing new 
street furniture. 

Page 7



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

 

 Existing trees will be maintained alongside the works to the park’s 

perimeter railing to promote clearer views into and out of the park. 
 

 The park will be illuminated via streetlamps and also illuminated 
bollards to provide definition for the main cycling routes, further 

improving connectivity and creating safer and vibrant areas during 
the evening. 

 

 An avenue of street trees with integral sustainable drainage and 
rain garden planting with swales and water collection features is 

proposed on the western boundary. Planting will provide a visual 
buffer but will also create, improve, and enhance the biodiversity of 
the park. 

 

 Grassed areas for sitting and relaxing will be surrounded with 

swathes of wildflowers, ornamental and native planting. Grassed 
terraced seating area at the north of the park will provide areas to 
assist in the promotion of positive health and wellbeing. 

 

2. The Procurement Process 

2.1 Tenders were issued on 16 July 2021 and a return date was set for 13 
August 2021. A week extension was granted following request from 
prospective tenderer. The tender period was eventually concluded on 20 

August 2021. The tender was open and available for all seven contractors 
on the framework. Four contractors, all of which were complaint submitted 

tenders by the close of the extended deadline date.     

2.2 The tender evaluation exercise was undertaken by officers from the 
Landscape, Quantity Surveying and Infrastructure teams, all of whom have 

been involved in the development of the scheme. 
 

2.3 The four compliant submissions have been evaluated to determine the  
most economically advantageous tender under the criteria of quality and 
price set at 20% and 80% respectively.  

 
2.4 Following the evaluation of the tender submissions the successful 

contractor is Horticon Limited. Approval is therefore sought to award the 
Islington Park Improvement Scheme contract to Horticon Limited at a target 
cost of £522,269.68. The tender scores were as follows: 

 
Name of Bidder % quality score 

(Max 20%) 
% price score 

(Max 80%) 
% overall score 

(100%) 

Horticon Limited 12.81 80.00 92.81 

Provider B 13.61 76.83 90.43 
Provider C 12.68 73.92 86.60 

Provider D 17.00 69.93 86.93 

Page 8



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

3. Social Value  

3.1 The Contractors ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as 

part of the framework process. The highest bidder demonstrated a 
satisfactory capacity to deliver Social Value outcomes which also impact on 

local issues.  

3.2 In their bid, Horticon Limited stated that they understand and accept their 
Social responsibility in supporting local employment initiatives through 

employing local people, using local businesses in their supply chain and 
offering training and apprenticeship opportunities. They stated that they pay 

all of their staff and contractors above the National Living Wage of £9.30 
per hour. In order to meet the Council’s Social, Environmental and 
Economic Social Value priorities, Horticon Limited have outlined to deliver 

the following:  

a) Economic Development 

 To offer a £500 donation to a local charity or community group. We 
would request they submit an application as to how they would use 
the donation and select a winner with the client’s input. 

 

 Horticon Limtied are a Greater Manchester based company 

committed to maximising employment opportunities to the 
communities in which they conduct their business. Over 20% of their 

workforce reside within Salford and over 60% within a 5-mile radius. 
 

 Local suppliers and subcontractors will be utilised on this project 

ensuring reinvestment into the local economy 
 

 
b) Educational Opportunities 

 To offer careers advice/talks to local secondary schools/colleges, 

including Salford City College and hold “Meet the Contractor” events 
on site which selected students and members of staff would be 

invited to. 

 To offer local primary schools the opportunity to enter competition to 

design a site safety poster. The winners will receive a prize and their 
posters will be displayed on site. 

c) Social Impact 

 In conjunction with Build Salford and the Salford Foundation 
Horticon Limited will run an “Introduction to Construction 

Programme”, offering 2 work experience placements for currently 
unemployed people who would like to work in the Construction 
Industry. The programme will run for 1 month and will consist of the 

CSCS training course and a 3-week work placement. The attendees 

Page 9



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

will be provided with travel and lunch expenses. At the end of the 
placement, the young people will take a CSCS test, and Horticon 

Limtied will purchase their CSCS Cards.  

 To offer two days of corporate volunteering to undertake 

improvements in the local area and two days of Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE).  

3.3 These commitments will be formally agreed at the contractor inception 

meeting and will be closely monitored as part of the contract management.   

3.4 Hoticon Limited are currently not on Accredited Living Wage register but 

will be encouraged to do so.  

4. Funding 

4.1 The scheme is to be funded via £771,000 of DfT Active Travel Fund 3 

(ATF3) grant awarded to Salford City Council. There is also an allocation of 
£91,124.55 Section 106 local match funding that can be secured by the City 

Council.  

5. Recommendations 

5.1 That Procurement Board approves the appointment of Horticon Limited, 

subject to securing ATF3 grant and the signing of a delivery agreement 
from Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) via Transport for 

Greater Manchester (TfGM). 

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City 
 Transport in Salford 2025 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
The improvements will be of benefit to all but particularly to pedestrians and cyclists. 
It is considered that there are no adverse impacts associated with this project.  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

 
Low risk: 

o Developers can seek to legally challenge the city council to claim back Section 

106 monies if not used on a scheme that mitigates the impacts of that 

Page 10



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

development and/or spent in line with the requirements of the Section 106 
agreement.  

 
o The contractors on the landscape framework have a successful track record of 

delivering schemes on behalf of the City Council. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

The scheme will be funded from Active Travel Fund 3 grant (confirmation of funding 
is expected 22 October 2021). The funds will also be supported through Section 106 

match funding which are to be secured by the City Council. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 

Date: 13.10.21 
Comments: When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 

the execution of works, the Council must comply with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), 
failing which any subsequent award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge 

from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s apply to every contract, including temporary ones, 
for the procurement of supplies, services and the execution of works undertaken by or 

on behalf of the Council, subject to certain exceptions listed in the Orders.  
 
CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there 

is an auditable reason not to do so. The proposed award of the contract follows a call 
off exercise in accordance with the Council’s Landscape and Associated Services 

Framework referred to in the body of the report.  
 
The Framework Agreement was procured in accordance with the PCR following an 

open competitive OJEU process, and set up to allow the Council to set up an 
arrangement whereby suppliers can be preselected to supply a defined scope of works 

or services under an agreed set of terms and conditions. When they are required then 
the Council will undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through 

any number of ways depending on the circumstances. The terms and conditions 
established under the framework agreement govern the contracts let under the 

framework although each contract will inevitably have some differences to reflect the 
agreement struck between the parties to the contract. 
 

Once awarded, a contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
contractor. The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the 

framework agreement to ensure the procurement process is compliant and bids were 
evaluated in accordance with published criteria.  
 

In this instance submissions were evaluated on the most economically advantageous 
tender basis in line with the published criteria resulting in the proposed award of the 

contract to Horticon Ltd. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation. 

Page 11



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

 
It is important that the Council complies with the terms of the Active Travel Fund 3 

grant funding agreement (in particular ensuring that the fund is only used for eligible 
expenditure and any timescales around expenditure and reporting) are adhered to, 

otherwise the Council may be at risk of Evergreen seeking clawback of the funding for 
failure to comply. 

The report also refers to a proportion of the funding for the works coming from s106 

funds. The expenditure must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning 
obligations. Should the Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within 

the agreements, or outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a 
developer may challenge that decision and claim back contributions. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Natalie Birchall, Finance Officer  
Date: 14.10.2021 

Comments:   

This report seeks approval to appoint Horticon to deliver Phase 3, Islington park, which 
is part of the bee network delivery programme, with a target delivery cost of 

£522,269.68. 

The funding for phase 3, will be met from the DfT active travel fund round 3 awarded 

to SCC, £771,000 and S106 local match, £91,124.55. 

The scheme delivery is subject to GMCA approval of a full business case and signing 
of a delivery agreement for Islington park improvement phase.  

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Deborah Derbyshire, Category 

Manager  
Date: 13th October 2021 

Comments: The project was procured through Salford’s own Landscaping and 

Associated Services Framework and all companies selected on the framework were 
invited by means of the mini competition.  The framework is compliant with the 

Procurement Contract Regulations and the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by Mike Hemingway, Principal Officer 
Date: 14.10.2021 

 

Comments:  

The Salford City Centre Bee Network scheme proposal will create an interconnected 
walking and cycling network which will encourage active travel, reducing reliance on 
motorised vehicles and consequently reducing carbon emissions and improving air 

quality. 

Page 12



Islington Park Improvement – aw ard of contract  

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Environment 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Anene Chiegboka, Project Manager  

 

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Blackfriars & Trinity, Ordsall 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
 

REPORT OF  

THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

TO  

PROCUREMENT BOARD  

ON  

7 JULY 2021 
 

 
TITLE: SALFORD CITY CENTRE BEE NETWORK  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That the City Mayor: 

 
1. Approve the issue of tenders for each phase of the proposed Salford City Centre 

Bee Network scheme. 

2. Notes and endorses the proposed procurement routes as proposed in Section 

5.   

3. Delegates Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 

officer to submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority (GMCA) for review. 

4. Delegates Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 

officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between 

Salford City Council, Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.  

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This report provides a scheme update following the successful bid to the Mayors 
Challenge Fund (MCF) gaining programme entry status and seeks further approval for 
the next steps of delivery. The Salford City Centre Bee Network once completed will 
support the transformation of Salford City centre into an attractive and welcoming 
environment for local people, residents and people travelling across Salford city centre. 
 
The current estimated total cost for all phases of the project is £4.9m (this is based on 
a pre-tender cost estimate in January 2021), for the delivery of the scheme on site and 
the required TfGM/MCF levels of risk.  

Page 15



 2

The scheme will be largely funded from MCF grant, subject to a successful business 
case approval by the GMCA, a proportion of Section 106 funding to be secured by the 
City Council will also be used. 

The next stage of the project requires that the scheme is submitted for tender, with this 
report seeking endorsement to the proposed procurement route. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 
 Appendix A: Scheme Overview Plan 
 Appendix B: Vehicle Access Plan 
 Appendix C: Strategy for Delivery 

 
KEY DECISION: YES 

 
 
DETAILS: 

1. Background 

1.1 The Bee Network proposals create an interconnected walking and cycling network 
which links key trip generators by providing routes along the River Irwell, 
negotiating railway infrastructure, and connections through neighbourhoods as 
shown in Appendix A. The resultant density of the network is representative of the 
area being part of the expanding regional centre.  

 
1.2 The majority of the proposed Bee Network utilises quieter streets and where the 

Bee Network meets busy roads, crossings are proposed. A quiet street is a street 
where through traffic is slowed down or removed to allow space for residents to 
play, chat, cycle, walk or scoot with focus being around the people that live in the 
neighbourhood. 

 
1.3 In order to create active neighbourhoods, modal filters are proposed within the 

Trinity and Islington neighbourhoods and the implementation of these will reduce 
motorised through traffic but ensure that local car access and walking and cycling 
isn’t restricted. See Appendix B for Vehicle Access Plan for proposed vehicle 
movements following scheme implementation. 

 
1.4 The Bee Network also connects to either existing or proposed cycling and walking 

infrastructure. These include: 
 A6/Chapel Street Corridor 
 Great Clowes Street/Blackfrairs Road Corridor 
 Oldfield Road  
 Liverpool Street/Middlewood Street 

 
1.5 Appendix C shows the strategy for delivery of the Salford City Centre Bee Network 

which has been scheduled into three different phases. These include: 
 
 

Page 16



 3

            Phase 1: Trinity Active Neighbourhood – (construction cost estimate is £3.1m) 
            Phase 2: Islington Active Neighbourhood – (construction cost estimate is £1.2m) 
            Phase 3: Islington Park Improvement – (construction cost estimate is £0.6m) 

 
   The total estimated construction cost for all phases of the scheme is £4.9m 
 

2. Wider benefits of the Scheme 

2.1 The scheme seeks to reduce the dominance of general traffic, reduce associated 
negative environmental impacts and provide direct and safe routes for pedestrians 
and cyclists accessing the city centre through provision of new cycle facilities, new 
and improved crossing facilities, modal filters and parking provisions. Public realm 
improvements are also proposed which will support the wider regeneration of 
central Salford and provide an environment that is welcoming and encourages low 
traffic and active neighbourhoods. 

 
2.2 In line with results seen with similar active neighbourhood schemes implemented 

in other part of the country, benefits of the scheme include improved life 
expectancy, more active lifestyles of children and adults and improved air quality. 
Primary interventions include new and improved crossings, modal filters, and minor 
highway realignments. The resultant network provides: 

 
 Connections through local neighbourhoods to key local destinations including 

schools, shops, and medical centres; 
 

 Links to public transport at Salford Central Station and the key bus corridor at 
Chapel Street and Blackfriars Road; 

 
 Quiet streets, giving the residents back their streets by preventing non-

residential through traffic. These streets provide a quieter alternative to the 
corridors that are being developed as an integral part of the Bee Network. The 
quiet street part of the network also provides a cleaner air alternative to the 
main corridors; 

 
 A network that links up existing and proposed green spaces and public squares 

as well as creating green routes through the introduction of green 
infrastructure. Sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) will also be 
incorporated where possible to aid a more sustainable approach to urban 
drainage; 

 
 Routes have the potential to be animated through art and the introduction of 

play; 
 

 The opportunity to review and introduce TRO’s to prevent problem parking by 
commuters to the City Centre and students from the University of Salford 

 
 Connections to key cultural destinations that are on the network; and 

 

Page 17



 4

 Connections into new and emerging neighbourhoods in Salford as well as 
Manchester City Centre providing access to employment and leisure 
opportunities for existing residents. 

 
2.3 Significant private sector development is taking place alongside investment in new 

and improved infrastructure. Increasing numbers of people are living and working 
in established neighbourhoods such as Trinity, Islington, Adelphi and Irwell 
Riverside whilst emerging neighbourhoods such as St John’s, New Bailey, 
Middlewood Locks and Greengate are seeing thousands of new homes and jobs 
created alongside new leisure opportunities. 

 
2.4 As regeneration plans come to fruition and investor confidence grows, the look, 

feel and function of this part of the City Centre is changing. The area is no longer 
a transient space existing primarily as a through route for commuters. These are 
fast becoming City Centre streets situated at the heart of growing City Centre 
neighbourhoods. 

 
2.5 Salford City Council has developed a strategic plan for the City Centre, aimed at 

promoting less reliance on the motor car and encouraging people to move through 
the area by cycling, walking, and using public transport. 

 

3. Public Consultation 

3.1 The Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development and the Executive 
Support Member for Transport have been briefed on the proposals contained within 
this report and are supportive. The Local Councillors in the Ward to which the 
proposed works will take place have also been consulted on the proposals.  

3.2 A five-week public consultation was undertaken from 18 December 2020 to 22 
January 2021. A total of 459 comments were received through the following 
engagement channels:  

Commonplace online based consultation tool 425 
Emails 19 
Returned post                                                    9 
Voice Messages 6 

Total 459 
 

3.3 The table below summarises the comments received through emails and returned 
posts, where 12 respondents are in support of the scheme and 11 respondents 
have objected to the scheme. For either negative or positive expression towards 
the scheme, the respondents provided constructive narrative on their stand points 
and are vital for design considerations. The voice messages did not provide a clear 
indication whether respondents were for or against the scheme, hence these have 
not been taken into consideration.  

 

Page 18



 5

 Negative/Somewhat 
Negative  

Positive/Somewhat 
Positive 

Other comments 
(not related to 
scheme) 

Emails 8 6 5 
Returned Post 3 6 0 

Total  11 12  
 

 

3.4 The chart below shows a high-level summary of the feedback received through 
Commonplace online consultation tool. It shows that 71% of responses were 
positive, and 23% negative with some proposed interventions having significant 
numbers of negative comments as opposed to other intervention proposed for the 
scheme.  

 

 

 

 

3.5 The table below summaries the 425 comments received for the respective tiles 
created for a targeted audience as per the 11 locations within Trinity and Islington 
neighbourhoods and provision of cycle parking.  

 
 
 

Page 19



 6

  
How respondents feel about the 
scheme 

Negative Neutral Positive Total  

  Cycle Parking 0 1 25 26 

Location 1 Silk Street Crossing 5 3 28 36 

Location 2 Blackburn Street 10 2 22 34 

Location 3 North George Street and Cannon Street 17 2 18 37 

Location 4 Adelphi Street and Peru Street 6 5 27 38 

Location 5 
Mayan Avenue, Mount Street and 
Satinwood Walk 

21 2 15 38 

Location 6  Riverside Path 0 2 42 44 

Location 7 
Cleminson Street, Ford Street and St 
Stephen Street 

29 7 28 64 

Location 8 Springfield Lane 0 2 38 40 

Location 9 
Chapel Street, Great George Street and 
Islington Way 

6 2 21 29 

Location 10 Islington Park 1 0 22 23 

Location 11 Islington Neighbourhood 1 0 15 16 

 Total number of comments 96 28 301 425 

 

3.6 The charts below show the relative contributions on how the respondents felt 
towards the proposals to the overall total received for each of the locations. The 
respondents attributed how they felt either by indicating positive, neutral, or 
negative.   

 

Page 20



 7

  

     
    

 

 

 

 

Negative
55%

Neutral
5%

Positive
40%

Location 5 - Mayan Avenue, Mount 
Street and Satinwood Walk

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
14%

Neutral
8%

Positive
78%

Location 1 - Silk Street 
Crossing

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
29%

Neutral
6%

Positive
65%

Location 2 - Blackburn Street

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
46%

Neutral
5%

Positive
49%

Location 3 - North George Street 
and Cannon Street

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
16%

Neutral
13%Positive

71%

Location 4 - Adelphi Street and 
Peru Street

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
0% Neutral

5%

Positive
95%

Location 6 - Riverside Path

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
45%

Neutral
11%

Positive
44%

Location 7 - Cleminson Street, 
Ford Street and St Stephen Street

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
0%

Neutral
5%

Positive
95%

Location 8 - Springfiled Lane

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
21%

Neutral
7%Positive

72%

Location 9 - Chapel Street, Great 
George Street and Islington Way 

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
4% Neutral

0%

Positive
96%

Location 10 - Islington Park

Negative Neutral Positive

Negative
6%

Neutral
0%

Positive
94%

Location 11 - Islington Neighbourhood

Negative Neutral Positive

Page 21



 8

3.7 It can be deduced that significant proportion of objections were received at three 
locations. As shown in the chart above, there are 46%, 55% and 45% negative 
feedbacks received for Locations 3, 5 and 7 respectively.  
 

3.8 Since the end of the consultation on 22 January 2021, officers have reviewed 
comments received through all channels of the consultation. These were discussed 
during workshop held on 3 February 2021 by multidisciplinary team involved in the 
development of the scheme. In summary, the points noted for reasons why 
respondents objected at the three locations with the highest percentages of negative 
were considered and alternative design options proposed to address these 
concerns. The changes to the scheme proposals include: 

 
 Location 3 – North George Street and Cannon Street 

o Existing modal filter at Cannon Street to be removed. This will offer 
vehicle accessibility for residents with the proposed one-way system on 
North George Street.   

 
 Location 5 – Mayan Avenue, Mount Street and Satinwood Walk 

o At Trinity Park, a new 4m wide shared route to be incorporated linking 
Mayan Avenue and Mount Street.  
 

o Proposed CYCLOPS junction at St Stephen Street / Blackfriars Road 
junction will not be progressed and hence no need for introduction of 
modal filter on Mount Street. CYCLOPS crossing has been designed and 
will be progressed instead.  

 
 Location 7 – Cleminson Street, Ford Street and St Stephen Street 

o Modal Filter trial was implemented using an Experimental Traffic 
Regulation Order (ETRO) that was made on the 19 June 2020, with 
the filters installed on 10 July 2020. A targeted public consultation on 
the ETRO consisting of letter drops and online questionnaire 
concluded on 19 December 2020. 
 

o The initial analysis of the modal filters indicated greater percentage of 
dissatisfaction by the residents and there were further concerns raised 
by Ward Councillors particularly for the modal filter situated along St 
Stephen Street, between Brotherton Drive and the access road to the 
parade of shops.  

 
o Since then, Members requested that changes be made to the Active 

Neighbourhood (ETRO) trial to take account of comments and 
feedback received during the consultation period. The legal process for 
implementing these new locations has started but will take some time 
to implement. So that the comments / feedback on the St Stephen St 
filter could be acted on as swiftly as possible, the modal filter on St 
Stephen Street between Brotherton Drive and Bevill Square was 
relocated on 12 March 2021.  This relocation has temporarily reinstated 
the link along the full length of St Stephen Street, whilst the process for 
the revised trial is completed. 

 

Page 22



 9

o As shown in Appendix B, the proposed new modal filters will be 
situated at: 

- Chapel Street and St Stephen Street Junction. Access to / from 
Chapel Street from the south end of St Stephen Street will not be 
permitted.  

- Lamb Lane at the slip road from Trinity Way. Access from Trinity 
Way will not be permitted. 

All other filter locations that are part of the original trial on North George Street, 
Frederick Street and Stevenson Street to remain in place. 

 
3.9 It is important to note that in the wake of coronavirus pandemic in 2020, through 

funding from the Department for Transport made available to districts in Greater 
Manchester, Emergency Active Travel plans were implemented across Salford. 
Some modal filters, which are elements of the long-term proposal for MCF Salford 
City Centre Bee Network scheme were brought forward and implemented within 
Trinity and Islington Neighbourhoods. In addition, the Department for Transport 
survey carried out a survey in Autumn 2020, with 438 residents in Trinity & 
Islington. This showed that Salford returned the most positive response with 65% 
of people surveyed supporting the low traffic neighbourhood. We are awaiting the 
full publication of the research.  

 

4. Estimated Project Costs 

4.1 The current estimated total cost for the project is £4,919,701 (based on a pre-
tender cost estimate prepared in January 2021).  

 

5. Procurement route 

5.1 As described in section 1.5 there are 3 phases to the City Centre Bee Network. 
Phases may be tendered individually dependent on programming and funding 
constraints.  The proposals for the City Centre Bee Network require a wide range 
of interventions, which varies between highway and landscaping work elements.  
Therefore, delivery works will be packaged as it pertains to disciplines. The 
following procurement routes are available and recommended: 

5.2 For the main highway works, the proposed contract is the Bolton Council Highways 
Framework Contract 2019/2023. 
 

5.3 For landscape works, the proposed contract is the Salford City Council Landscape 
Contractor Framework. 
 

6. Funding 

6.1 In late 2017, the Cycling and Walking Commissioner for Greater Manchester Chris 
Boardman produced the Made to Move action plan to double and then double again 
cycling in Greater Manchester and make walking the natural choice for as many 

Page 23



 10

short trips as possible. He noted the objective is to ‘build a new and high-quality 
network for cycling and walking that benefits all of our town and city centres but 
that also delivers high quality commuter routes into the heart of the regional centre’. 
This is to be achieved by: 

 New, better, and more innovative design 
 Safer streets and junctions 
 Reclaiming the school run 
 Genuinely joined up public transport 
 Increasing people’s access to bike 
 Culture shift 
 Efficient investment 

6.2 In May 2018, it was announced that between 2018 and 2022, £160m of funding will 
be made available through the Transforming Cities Fund to encourage more people 
to cycle and walk more often in Greater Manchester. With the creation of MCF, 
there became a funding stream that could be applied for, and in Spring 2019, City 
Centre Bee Network scheme which forms part of the City Centre Salford – Active 
Centres, Corridors and Neighbourhoods’ project, was approved as part of Tranche 
5 and has programme entry status. 

6.3 The scheme will be funded from a combination of  Section 106 Match Funding 
Contributions and the Mayor Challenge Fund (MCF) (subject to GMCA approval of 
the business case and the availability of funds) at values of approximately £0.555m 
and £4.4m respectively. 

6.4 The Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development was briefed on 12 
January 2021 on the allocation of the Section 106 Match Funding Contributions for 
the Active Centres, Corridors & Neighbourhood Projects within the City Centre 
Salford. 

6.5 In order to access MCF funding stream, a requirement is to submit a Full Business 
Case (FBC) to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for review. 

6.6 Drafting of the Business Case process has commenced and will be developed in 
close collaboration with Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and specialist 
suppliers. 

6.7 The FBC is expected to be submitted to GMCA once the tender process has been 
completed and the highest scoring tender has been identified.  

6.8 In advance of the submission, the Salford City Centre Bee Network FBC will be 
reviewed by the Strategic Director for Place and Section 151 Officer and It is 
recommended that authority is delegated to the Strategic Director for Place in 
consultation with Section 151 Officer to submit the FBC to GMCA for review. 

 

 

Page 24



 11

7. Funding Agreement 

7.1 As part of the MCF gateway process for Full Business Case, Salford City Council 
must enter into a legally binding Grant Funding Agreement (GFA). This forms a 
financial contract between Salford, TfGM and GMCA.  

7.2 This report seeks delegated authority for the Strategic Director Place in 
consultation with the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding 
Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, TfGM and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority.   

8. Programme  

8.1 The forecasted key project milestones for the Salford City Centre Bee Network 
scheme are detailed in the table below.  Construction dates are forecasts and 
dependent on securing funding approval.   

Key Milestones 

Completion  
(Forecasted) 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 

Detailed Design  Summer 
2021 

Summer 
2021 

Summer 
2021 

Business Case Approval Winter 
2022 

Spring 
2022 

Winter 
2021 

Construction Starts (subject to 
funding approval) 

Spring 
2022 

Summer 
2022 

Winter 
2022 

Construction Finishes Autumn 
2022 

Spring 
2023 

Summer 
2022 

  

 

9. Next Steps 

9.1 That the City Mayor notes the details of this report and endorses the 
procurement routes proposed which can be utilised for the different phases 
of the City Centre Bee Network scheme. 

9.2 Notes the recommendation to delegate authority to the Strategic Director 
Place in consultation with the S151 officer to submit the Full Business Case 
(FBC) to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for review. 

9.3 Notes the recommendation to delegate authority to the Strategic Director 
Place in consultation with the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant 
Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.  

Page 25



 12

9.4 Notes that the scheme will return to Procurement Board in advance of 
GMCA approval of the Business Case, where a report will be submitted 
seeking approval to award a contract to successful Contractor, subject to 
GMCA sign off for the funding of the scheme. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City 
 Transport in Salford 2025 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The improvements will be of benefit to all but particularly to pedestrians and cyclists. It 
is considered that there are no adverse impacts associated with this project. 

 

SOCIAL VALUE: 

Contribution to Social Value will also be considered as an element within the 
assessment of tender options. Tenderers will provide a method statement describing 
how they will bring value to the three priority Social Value outcomes for Salford, which 
are:  

 Social: increased community strength and resilience 
 Environmental: improved impact of the local environment on people’s wellbeing 
 Economic: increased number of quality employment opportunities and reduced 

poverty for local citizens. 
  

Tenderers will be asked to describe what Social Value will be delivered during the 
implementation of this project and to demonstrate how they will develop, monitor and 
report upon Social Value. This is expected to include, but not limited to, consideration 
of the following: 
 

 Details of any traineeships, apprenticeships, work experience placements and 
employment of local labour on this contract; 

 Details of any commitments to pay the Salford Living Wage;  
 Details of any local companies to be employed as sub-contractors or local 

suppliers to be utilised in delivering this contract; 
 Details of any planned engagement with local secondary schools around 

curriculum and careers development; 
 Details of any proposed donations or in-kind contributions to local community 

and user groups; and 
 Details of any proposed corporate volunteering days. 

 
As noted in Section 5 for the Procurement routes; for the Landscape Contractor 
Framework, submissions will be evaluated to determine the most economically 
advantageous tender weighed at 20% on Quality and 80% on Price. As it pertains only 
to delivery of Phase 3 – Islington Park improvement, £11,000 is a provisional sum 
placed on Social Value. Whereas for the Highway Framework Contracts, it will be 

Page 26



 13

weighed at 20% on Social Value, 40 % on Quality, and 40% on Price. A sum for the 
Social Value is yet to be determined for the delivery of Phases 1 & 2.  

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Low risk: 
o Developers can seek to legally challenge the city council to claim back Section 

106 monies if not used on a scheme that mitigates the impacts of that 
development and/or spent in line with the requirements of the Section 106 
agreement.  
 

o The Design team are experienced in the design of schemes of this nature and 
the contractors for both highway and landscape works have a successful track 
record of delivering schemes on behalf of the City Council. 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Most of the funding will be sought from the Mayor Challenge Fund (MCF) and from 
Section 106 match funding which are to be secured by the City Council. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
Date: 27.05.21 

Comments: Subject to funding approvals and in accordance with the Full Business 
Case, when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless 
there is an auditable reason not to do so. 
 
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 
ways such as mini-competition as in this instance, or direct allocation, depending on 
the circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The Council will need to follow the procedure set out in the framework 
agreements to ensure the procurement process is compliant and bids are evaluated in 
accordance with published criteria.  
 
The proposed procurement of the works will be by way of a tender exercise in 
accordance with the process set out in the Bolton Council Highways and the Council’s 
Landscape Framework, which were procured in accordance with the PCR following an 
OJEU process, were set up to allow the Council, and other contracting authorities, 
through open competitive process, to access an arrangement whereby suppliers can 

Page 27



 14

be preselected to supply a defined scope of works or services under an agreed set of 
terms and conditions. The terms and conditions established under the framework 
agreement govern the contracts let under the framework although each contract will 
inevitably have some differences to reflect the agreement struck between the parties 
to the contract. Compliance with the processes will ensure that the risk of challenge to 
the award of a contract is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is 
extremely unlikely to be successful.  

Legal shall be happy to advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council, 
TfGM and GMCA to ensure the Council’s interests are protected. The terms of any 
grant funding agreement will need to be adhered to in the event that there are clawback 
provisions for failure to comply. 

The report refers to some match funding for the works coming from s106 funds. The 
expenditure must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning obligations. 
Should the Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within the 
agreements, or outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a 
developer may challenge that decision and claim back contributions. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Supplied by Natalie Birchall, Finance Officer  
Date: 21.05.2021 

Comments:   
In May 2018, the City Centre Bee Network scheme which forms part of the City Centre 
Salford – Active Centres, Corridors and Neighbourhoods’ project, was approved as 
part of Tranche 5 and has programme entry status. 
 
The current estimated total cost for the project is £4.9m, which includes all the project 
development costs incurred to date, which have been claimed in line with the quarterly 
TfGM grant process. 
 
The full cost of the scheme will be funded from S106 contributions which is 
approximately £0.555m and MCF grant pending FBC approval as detailed in this 
report.    

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 
Supplied by Emma Heyes, Category Manager  
Date: 21 05 2021 

Comments: 
Any procurement activity relating to this project must be carried out in accordance with 
the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs) and Public Contracts Regulations 
(PCR). 
 
It is noted in the report that the use of Frameworks is being considered as the most 
appropriate route to market. 
 

Page 28



 15

The call-off requirements of these frameworks will need to be followed to ensure that 
the contracts will be complaint with CSOs and PCR. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS  

Not Applicable 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by Mike Hemingway, Principal Officer 
Date: 24.05.2021 
 

Comments:  
This project is an appropriate use of funding on the basis that it provides crossings and 
infrastructure to enable safer movements of pedestrians and cyclists within the 
neighbourhoods. As noted in the scheme’s benefits, the proposals will create quiet 
streets by reducing the dominance of general traffic, provide connections into new and 
emerging neighbourhoods in Salford and provide direct and safe routes for pedestrians 
and cyclists accessing the city centre through provision of new cycle facilities, new and 
improved crossing facilities, modal filters and parking provisions.  
 
The award of this contract will be considered within the Social value assessments of 
the tenders once they are returned. Tenderers will be asked to provide details of any 
specific environmental sustainability practices / measures to be employed on this 
contract and will be scored on that basis. 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Environment 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Anene Chiegboka, Project Manager  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:   

Blackfrairs & Trinity, Ordsall  
 

Appendix A – Scheme Overview Plan 
 
Appendix B – Vehicle Access Plan 
 
Appendix C – Strategy for Delivery 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Silk Stre
et

Silk Stre
et

Bridgewater Street

Greengate West Greengate West

East Phillip Street

Change Way

Anaconda DriveCarding Grove

Bridgew
ater Street

Springfield Lane
Springfield Lane

Greengate

Greengate

New
 B

rid
ge

 St
re

et

Co
lli

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Dean Road

Rope W
alk

Poplin Drive

Twillbrook Drive

G
eo

rg
e�

e 
Dr

iv
e

Linen Court

Chiffon Way

Calico Close

Brocade  Close

Velour Close

Angora Drive

Bl
ac

kb
ur

n 
St

re
et

Ad
el

ph
i  

St
re

et

Ad
el

ph
i  

St
re

et

N
orth George  Street

N
orth George  Street

N
or

th
 G

eo
rg

e 
 S

tr
ee

t

Can
non  S

tre
et

Cannon  Street

Damask Avenue

Can
no

n  
Str

ee
t

North Hill  Street

Arlington Street

Barne�
 Driv

e
Mount  S

tre
et

M
ou

nt
  S

tre
et

Wellington Street 

West King Street 

Nathan Drive 

Fr
ed

er
ick

 St
re

et
 

Brotherton Drive

Tysoe Gardens

Cleminson Street

Lamb Lane

Bloom
 Street

New Bailey Street

New Bailey Street

Bridge Street

Bridge Street

W
illi

am
 St

re
et

Bury Street
Bury 

Stre
et

Bury Street

Cross 
Str

eet

Gr
av

el
 La

ne

Gr
av

el
 L

an
e

Viaduct Street

King Street

King Street

Queen Street

Queen Street

Dearm
ans Place

La
m

b 
La

ne

Tr
in

ity
 W

ay

Tri
nity

 W
ay

Tri
nity

 W
ay

Trinity Way

Tr
in

ity
 W

ay

Tr
in

ity
 W

ay

Tri
nity

 W
ay

Cleminson Street

Chapel Street
Chapel Street

Chapel Street

Chapel Street

Chapel Street

Chapel Street

Chapel Stre
et

Cleminson Street

Peru Street
Mayan Avenue

M
ayan Avenue

Browning Street

Ea
st

 M
ar

ke
t S

tr
ee

t

G
re

at
 G

eo
rg

e 
St

re
et

Isl
in

gt
on

 W
ay

Isl
in

gt
on

 W
ay

North Star Drive

Swi�sure Avenue

East Ordsall Lane

East Ordsall Lane

Gore Stre
et

Cle
rm

on
t W

ay

Ea
st

 O
rd

sa
ll 

La
ne

Ea
st

 O
rd

sa
ll 

La
ne

Middlewood Street

James Street

Barrow Street

O
ld
fie

ld
 R

oa
d

Oldfi
eld

 Ro
ad

Rodney Street

Fo
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

Kays Gardens

Ro
sa

m
on

d 
Dr

iv
e

St Stephen Street

Blackfriars Road

Blackfriars Road

Blackfriars Street

Blackfriars Street

St Simon Street

St Sim
on Street

St
 S

te
ph

en
 S

tr
ee

t

St
 S

te
ph

en
 S

tr
ee

t

Victoria Bridge Street

De
an

sg
at

e

De
an

sg
at

e

De
an

sg
at

e

City Centre Bee Network - Neighbourhood Plan December 2020

Key

Bee Network 

Bee Network on busy routes

School

Proposed crossing or crossing 
upgrade

Existing crossing

Proposed signalised junction 
with crossings

Proposed modal filter

Experimental Traffic Order 
modal filter

Proposed environmental 
improvement

Proposed one way

Existing one way

Trinity active 
neighbourhood

Islington active
neighbourhood

The Friars 
Primary School

River Irwell

R
iv

er
 Ir

w
el

l

The Cathedral School 
of St Peter and St 

John

Blackfriars 
Park

The Meadow

Peel Park

Trinity
 Park

Salford 
Cathedral

Salford Central 
Station

Saint Phillips 
Chapel Street

Islington 
Park

Islington 
Play Area

St Phillip’s CE 
Primary School

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ISLINGTON

UNIVERSITY
& THE CRESCENT

MIDDLEWOOD
LOCKS

TRINITY

ADELPHI

CAMBRIDGELOWER 
BROUGHTON

M A N C H E S T E R

IRWELL
RIVERSIDE

GREENGATE

CHAPEL
WHARF

NEW
BAILEY

ST. JOHN’SREGENT
RETAIL

PARK

LIVERPOOL
STREET

ORDSALL

SPINNINGFIELDS

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

3333

5555

66

HH

II

11

EE

FF

22

11

11

11

11

BB

CC

22

22

22

AA

55
55

DD

33

GG

44

PHASE 1PHASE 1

PHASE 2PHASE 2

ADELPHI BRIDGE TO CHAPEL STREET

TRINITY FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

ISLINGTON FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

CHAPEL STREET TO MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS

SPRINGFIELD LANE TO TRINITY WAY

MOUNT STREET TO ST STEPHEN’S GARDENS

ADELPHI WHARF TO RIVERSIDE WALK

TIMEKEEPERS SQUARE TO TRINITY WAY CROSSING 
AT BLOOM STREET

RIVERSIDE WALK FROM ADELPHI BRIDGE TO 
SPRINGFIELD LANE

TOUCAN, PUFFIN AND CYCLE CROSSINGS AT SILK 
STREET 

TOUCAN CROSSING AT ADELPHI STREET / PERU 
STREET 

TOUCAN CROSSING AT BROUGHTON BRIDGE

SIGNALISED JUNCTION WITH TOUCAN CROSSINGS 
• Links into Chapel Street remedials
• Review of existing crossings in collaboration with 
UTC / TfGM
• Interface with Plot E6 (ECF)

MODAL FILTER AT EAST ORDSALL LANE AT THE 
RAILWAY UNDERPASS
• Liaison with Network Rail - asset holders
• Liaison with Middlewood Locks Development
• Traffic & Transport Modelling (TfGM)
• TRO process

KEY DEPENDENCIES
• Emergency Services
• Network Rail
• The Arch Company
• Scarborough Group

PARALLEL CROSSING  AND REMOVAL OF EXISTING 
FOOTBRIDGE AT BLACKFRIARS PARK

EAST ORDSALL LANE TO ISLINGTON PARK

KEY

11

55

66

11

22

EE

FF

22

33

44

AA

BB

CC

DD

FUTURE NETWORK OPPORTUNITIES

ORDSALL FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

PROPOSED BEE NETWORK
(Existing route or to be delivered by others)

BEE NETWORK ON A BUSY ROAD

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

5555

PHASE 3PHASE 3

Adjacent SchemesAdjacent Schemes

ISLINGTON PARK

NEIGHBOURHOODS IN DEVELOPMENT

CHAPEL STREET / TRINITY WAY JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

MCF TRANCHE 5 PROJECTS

GORE STREET CONNECTIONS

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 2

BROUGHTON CYCLEWAY ENHANCEMENTS

IRWELL STREET/TRINITY WAY JUNCTION

ORDSALL CHORD RIVERSIDE CONNECTION

OLDFIELD ROAD CORRIDOR

MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS
Bee Network routes through Middlewood Locks to be 
delivered in conjunction with Scarborough Group. 

NEW BAILEY
Bee Network routes through New Bailey to be delivered 
in conjunction with ECF. 

GREENGATE
Bee Network routes to be delivered in conjunction with 
developers.

GREENGATE LINK

SPRINGFIELD LANE JUNCTION

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 1

CLERMONT WAY LINK 

HH

II

11

UPGRADE TO EXISTING CROSSING AT BEXLEY 
SQUARE, CHAPEL STREET 
(new push button box only) 

GG

FUTURE NETWORK OPPORTUNITIES

ORDSALL FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

PROPOSED BEE NETWORK
(Existing route or to be delivered by others)

BEE NETWORK ON A BUSY ROAD

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

5555

PHASE 3PHASE 3

Adjacent SchemesAdjacent Schemes

ISLINGTON PARK

NEIGHBOURHOODS IN DEVELOPMENT

CHAPEL STREET / TRINITY WAY JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

MCF TRANCHE 5 PROJECTS

GORE STREET CONNECTIONS

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 2

BROUGHTON CYCLEWAY ENHANCEMENTS

IRWELL STREET/TRINITY WAY JUNCTION

ORDSALL CHORD RIVERSIDE CONNECTION

OLDFIELD ROAD CORRIDOR

MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS
Bee Network routes through Middlewood Locks to be 
delivered in conjunction with Scarborough Group. 

NEW BAILEY
Bee Network routes through New Bailey to be delivered 
in conjunction with ECF. 

GREENGATE
Bee Network routes to be delivered in conjunction with 
developers.

GREENGATE LINK

SPRINGFIELD LANE JUNCTION

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 1

CLERMONT WAY LINK 

HH

II

11

UPGRADE TO EXISTING CROSSING AT BEXLEY 
SQUARE, CHAPEL STREET 
(new push button box only) 

GG

FUTURE NETWORK OPPORTUNITIES

ORDSALL FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

PROPOSED BEE NETWORK
(Existing route or to be delivered by others)

BEE NETWORK ON A BUSY ROAD

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

5555

PHASE 3PHASE 3

Adjacent SchemesAdjacent Schemes

ISLINGTON PARK

NEIGHBOURHOODS IN DEVELOPMENT

CHAPEL STREET / TRINITY WAY JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

MCF TRANCHE 5 PROJECTS

GORE STREET CONNECTIONS

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 2

BROUGHTON CYCLEWAY ENHANCEMENTS

IRWELL STREET/TRINITY WAY JUNCTION

ORDSALL CHORD RIVERSIDE CONNECTION

OLDFIELD ROAD CORRIDOR

MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS
Bee Network routes through Middlewood Locks to be 
delivered in conjunction with Scarborough Group. 

NEW BAILEY
Bee Network routes through New Bailey to be delivered 
in conjunction with ECF. 

GREENGATE
Bee Network routes to be delivered in conjunction with 
developers.

GREENGATE LINK

SPRINGFIELD LANE JUNCTION

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 1

CLERMONT WAY LINK 

HH

II

11

UPGRADE TO EXISTING CROSSING AT BEXLEY 
SQUARE, CHAPEL STREET 
(new push button box only) 

GG

FUTURE NETWORK OPPORTUNITIES

ORDSALL FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

PROPOSED BEE NETWORK
(Existing route or to be delivered by others)

BEE NETWORK ON A BUSY ROAD

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

5555

PHASE 3PHASE 3

Adjacent SchemesAdjacent Schemes

ISLINGTON PARK

NEIGHBOURHOODS IN DEVELOPMENT

CHAPEL STREET / TRINITY WAY JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

MCF TRANCHE 5 PROJECTS

GORE STREET CONNECTIONS

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 2

BROUGHTON CYCLEWAY ENHANCEMENTS

IRWELL STREET/TRINITY WAY JUNCTION

ORDSALL CHORD RIVERSIDE CONNECTION

OLDFIELD ROAD CORRIDOR

MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS
Bee Network routes through Middlewood Locks to be 
delivered in conjunction with Scarborough Group. 

NEW BAILEY
Bee Network routes through New Bailey to be delivered 
in conjunction with ECF. 

GREENGATE
Bee Network routes to be delivered in conjunction with 
developers.

GREENGATE LINK

SPRINGFIELD LANE JUNCTION

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 1

CLERMONT WAY LINK 

HH

II

11

UPGRADE TO EXISTING CROSSING AT BEXLEY 
SQUARE, CHAPEL STREET 
(new push button box only) 

GG

FUTURE NETWORK OPPORTUNITIES

ORDSALL FILTERED NEIGHBOURHOOD

PROPOSED BEE NETWORK
(Existing route or to be delivered by others)

BEE NETWORK ON A BUSY ROAD

1111

2222

3333

4444

6666

7777

5555

PHASE 3PHASE 3

Adjacent SchemesAdjacent Schemes

ISLINGTON PARK

NEIGHBOURHOODS IN DEVELOPMENT

CHAPEL STREET / TRINITY WAY JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

MCF TRANCHE 5 PROJECTS

GORE STREET CONNECTIONS

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 2

BROUGHTON CYCLEWAY ENHANCEMENTS

IRWELL STREET/TRINITY WAY JUNCTION

ORDSALL CHORD RIVERSIDE CONNECTION

OLDFIELD ROAD CORRIDOR

MIDDLEWOOD LOCKS
Bee Network routes through Middlewood Locks to be 
delivered in conjunction with Scarborough Group. 

NEW BAILEY
Bee Network routes through New Bailey to be delivered 
in conjunction with ECF. 

GREENGATE
Bee Network routes to be delivered in conjunction with 
developers.

GREENGATE LINK

SPRINGFIELD LANE JUNCTION

CHAPEL STREET EAST PHASE 1

CLERMONT WAY LINK 

HH

II

11

UPGRADE TO EXISTING CROSSING AT BEXLEY 
SQUARE, CHAPEL STREET 
(new push button box only) 

GG

N

 City Centre Bee Network (CCMCF 8) - Strategy for Delivery - V7 - AM -09-06-2021

 CITY CENTRE BEE NETWORK (CCMCF 8) - STRATEGY FOR DELIVERY 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



3m WIDE SHARED FOOTPATH
Constructed from resin bound permeable paving

KEY

EXISTING RETAINING WALL 
Walls to be retained; existing railings to be 
removed and brick and concrete coping 
to be clad with material relating to and 
enhancing the vicinity.

PLAY AREA 
Equipped with safety surfacing, features and 
timber seating

GRASSED AREA   
Lawn area to sit, relax and enjoy the 
surroundings

CLERMONT WAY FOOTPATH  
Adopted footway to have tactile paving 
installed at each of the entrances to the park 
to delineate the shared user status.

LIGHTING COLUMNS 
Street lighting columns at key locations 
along Bee Network and entrance zones. 

ILLUMINATED BOLLARDS 
Illuminated bollards to delineate East-West 
route and South-East route. 

TERRACING & HIBERNACULA 
Simple grass and kerb edging to create a 
south facing low terrace. Approx 600-800mm 
high. Hibernacula, ‘Bug Hotel’ to be installed 
below ground. 

TIMBER BENCH 
Sweeping timber slatted bench with access 
to footpath and grassed area.  

WILDFLOWER 
Swathes of seasonal wildflowers to enhance 
biodiversity also providing colour and 
texture.   

2m WIDE FOOTPATH
Constructed from resin bound permeable paving

1.8m WIDE FOOTPATH
Constructed from resin bound permeable paving 

CYCLE STANDS  
Sheffield style stainless steel cycle stands to be 
positioned to accept cargo bikes & trailers. Location 
for bike share/dock system to be established.

BEE NETWORK BOULEVARD
2.4m (North) & 3m (South) bi-directional cycle route 
paved boulevard with specimen trees, benches, 
lighting columns and tactile paved crossing points. 

POP UP Event/Cafe zone
Paved area bounded by access paths. Easy 
access from North Star Drive. 

SWALE & ATTENUATION  
Proposed swale/dry river bed with marginal 
planting to collect and attenuate surface water and 
increase biodiversity.

SHRUB PLANTING 
Low growing shrubs and grasses to provide year 
round interest and enhance biodiversity.

EXISTING TREES 
Existing trees to be retained, crown lifted and crown 
thinned/reduced to open up views in and out of the 
park enhancing the natural surveillance.

PROPOSED TREES 
SuDS enabled trees alongside boulevard to create 
strong avenue, delineation, screening and enhance 
and improve the habitat potential. 

ENTRANCE MOSAIC WALLS 
600mm high feature walls decorated with community 
mosaics reminiscent of the existing park and 
community that have gone before.  

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

18
6

4

12

19 4

4

12

10

1
1

14

1

2
7

4

16

9
8

13

5
20

04

6

15

11

11

11

17

3
CL

ER
M

ON
T W

AY

MCF City Centre Bee Network. Proposals Plan for Islington Park December 2020

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
 

27th October 2021 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone 
 Street Lighting Column Replacements  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Greater Manchester 
Clean Air Zone Street Lighting Column Replacements as detailed in the table below: 
 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project GM Clean Air Zone Column Replacement 

Name of Successful Contractor  Altitude Services Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME 

Contract Value (£) £216,496.19 full project 

Contract Duration  7 months 

Contract Start Date  03/11/2021 

Contract End Date  30/05/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 0 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 0 months 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Choose an item. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5b



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Contact Officer (Name & number) Robert Owen 0161 779 4848 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 

Further competition under the GMCA Street 
Lighting Electrical Connections Framework 

Agreement 2020 - 2024 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 

reference & title, start/ end date 

GMCA Street Lighting Electrical Connections 
Framework Agreement 2020 - 2024 

Funding Source External Funding Source (please identify below) 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 
This report provides the outcome of the further competition under the GMCA Street 
Lighting Electrical Connections Framework Agreement 2020 - 2024, for the contract 

to provide the replacement of a number of new lighting columns across the City, along 
with other electrical infrastructure to enable to installation of the ANPR cameras to 

support the introduction of the GM Clean Air Zone. 
 
The further competition utilised the contractors on the GM Street Lighting Framework 

and this report seeks approval to award the contract to the successful tenderer. 
 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

GM Clean Air Plan – Cabinet Report – 27th July 2021 
 

 
 

KEY DECISION:   

No 

 
  

Page 38



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 
DETAILS:  

 
1. Background 

 
The City Council has been working with TfGM and the other 9 districts across 
Greater Manchester to deliver the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan, including 

the GM Clean Air zone. The Clean Air Plan was approved at the Cabinet on 27 th 
July 2021. 

 
The Clean Air Zone will include all of the roads within Greater Manchester, with the 
exception of the motorway network. Drivers will be informed of the operation and 

extents of the zone by highways signage. The scheme will be enforced with the 
use of more than 800 ANPR cameras installed across the network in Greater 

Manchester. 
 
The majority of the cameras will be mounted on brackets on lighting columns with 

a limited number mounted on separate posts where there are no suitable lighting 
columns. As part of the design of the scheme the lighting columns in Salford where 

the cameras are proposed have been assessed. The conclusion of this 
assessment is that the street lighting columns are not suitable to support the 
additional weight of the bracket and two ANPR cameras without further structural 

testing. To reduce risk to the programme the replacement of lighting columns is the 
preferred way forward rather than testing the columns. 

 
As a result, 72 lighting columns scattered across the City need to be replaced with 
uprated columns to enable the installation of the electrical equipment, brackets and 

ANPR cameras. 7 separate standalone posts will be installed by the ANPR camera 
contractor to complete the programme of ANPR cameras across the City. 

 
As part of this project the old columns will be removed and disposed, the new 
column erected along with the approved socket to enable the ANPR cameras to 

be installed as well as the electrical connection of the new column and the removal 
and re erection of the lanterns. The majority of the columns will be relocated to the 

same location. 
 
The ANPR contractor will then install the cameras once the column and electrical 

works are complete. 
 

2.  The Procurement Process 
 

The GMCA Street Lighting Electrical Connections Framework did not contain all 

the elements of the work required to deliver this project and given the anticipated 
value of the works, a further competition was arranged to ensure the project was 

delivered within appropriate procurement rules and advice. Four valid and 
complete tenders were received, and these have been evaluated on both quali ty 
and cost. The overall scores ranged from 50.88% up to 94%. 

Page 39



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The evaluators were briefed and completed an independent assessment of each 
tender response received against pre-defined evaluation criteria published in the 
evaluation matrix.  

The responses were assessed against the evaluation criteria and in accordance 
with the selection criteria resulting in a Preferred Supplier. The results of the 
evaluation are set out in the table below: 

Ranking 
Tender 

Nr 
Company Name 

Total 

Score  
Quality 

Total 

Score  
Finance 

OVERALL 

SCORE 

1 1 Altitude Services Ltd 49.00% 45.00% 94.00% 

4 2 Provider 2 18.00% 32.88% 50.88% 

2 3 Provider 3 41.00% 44.28% 85.28% 

3 4 Provider 4 27.00% 24.83% 51.83% 

 

Altitude Services Ltd ranked highest of the four tenders with an overall score of 94%. 

 
3. Social Value  

 
Social value forms an important element of the tender assessment and this has been 
reflected within the tender evaluations.  Social value formed 10% of the quality score.  

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Local Transport Plan 
GM Clean Air Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: The improvements will 

be of benefit to all but particularly those with respiratory illness and those who live 
work and travel along the roads where NO2 exceedances have been identifies. A 
Salford EIA supports the GM Clean Air Plan. 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

Low risk – The installation of new street lighting columns presents little risk, although 
there is a risk to the GM CAZ scheme if the columns and cameras are not in place and 
tested prior to the May 2022 when the Clean Air Zone goes live.

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: The financial case for the GM Clean Air Plan and Clean Air 

Zone was set out within the Outline Business Case (March 2019) with all 
development and delivery costs to be covered by central Government. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:   
Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor 

 

Page 40



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the requirements of the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), 
failing which a contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. 

CSO’s apply to every contract, including temporary ones, for the procurement of 
supplies, services and the execution of works undertaken by or on behalf of the 
Council, subject to certain exceptions listed in the Orders. CSO’s stipulate that where 

a suitable framework agreement exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 
reason not to. 

 
The further competition exercise set out in the report was undertaken utilising the 
GMCA Street Lighting Electrical Connections Framework Agreement which is fully 

OJEU compliant and has been procured for named authorities, including Salford City 
Council and other public sector organisations to use. Each framework is an 

overarching agreement through which those named organisations can select a service 
from a range of providers by undertaking an exercise to call off the services (eg. direct 
award or mini competition) and enter into an individual contract/agreement with that 

provider, in accordance with the terms of the framework agreement. A contract will 
then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The Council will need 

to have followed the procedure set out in the framework agreement to ensure the direct 
award procurement process is compliant. 
 

In this instance four tenders were received from framework suppliers which have been 
evaluated in accordance with published criteria resulting in the proposed award to 

Altitude Services Ltd. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of CSO’s and PCR

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer 

 
Funding for the street lighting column replacement works has been secured by TFGM 
from central government.  This scheme will have no unbudgeted impact on the 

Council, as an official purchase order will be supplied to the Council by TFGM, in order 
to undertake these works.  Staged payments will be made to the Council by TFGM, to 

cover the cost of the scheme up to completion point. 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:   

Supplied by Daniel Cunliffe, Procurement Officer.  
This opportunity was a further competition utilising the GMCA Street Lighting Electrical 

Connections Framework Agreement 2020 – 2024. The procurement process is 
outlined in the above report. Therefore, this complies with the councils contractual 
standing orders. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: 

Not Applicable 

 

Page 41



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Supplied by Michael Hemmingway 
 

Greater Manchester (GM) is taking action to improve air quality on local roads. All 
ten local authorities have worked together to develop the Greater Manchester Clean 
Air Plan. This will help bring nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels on local roads within legal 

limits by 2024. The final Clean Air Plan has now been approved by the councils, 
following a public consultation and further development work. It includes a Greater 

Manchester-wide Clean Air Zone, which is anticipated to launch on 30 May 
2022.  This programme of street lighting columns will enable the implementation of 
the clean air zone in Salford 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Not Applicable

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Robert Owen  
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 779 4848

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  
All Wards. 

 
 

 

Page 42



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 

Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
Name of Report: …Approval to go out to competition to deliver the Rough Sleepers 

Accommodation Programme. 

 
Committee: …Procurement Board 

 
Date: ………27th October 2021 

 
Category of exemption applied (from list below): ……3 ……………………… 
 

 

1 Information relating to any individual 

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual 

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that information) 

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the Council, or a Government minister, and any employees 

of, or office holders under, the Council. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the Council proposes: 

 
a) give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed on a person (including an organisation) or 

 
b) to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 

Standards Committee Only 

7a Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality 

7b Information which relates in any way to matters concerning national security 

7c The deliberations of a standards committee or of sub-committee of a 

standards committee established under the Provisions of part III of the Local 
government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on any matter referred under 
the provisions of section 64(2) of 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8a



 
 

 

Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

 
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 

probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 

 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  

 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 

safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 

 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 

 
 

No 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 44



 
 

 
 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 

public useful information?  
 

 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  
 

 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  

 
  

Yes 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 45



 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide details of reasoning) 

 

 

The report contains estimated total scheme costs which if released could prejudice 

the council’s commercial position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other documents attached? ……No……………………… 

 
Name of Author: ……Andrew Leigh 

 
Title: …………Head of Housing Strategy 
 

Date: ………………18th October 2021 
 

Page 46



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 13th October 2021
	5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Islington Park Improvement Scheme - Anene Chiegboka
	05(a) - Appendix A - PB Report_Salford City Centre Bee Network 07.07.21
	05(a) - Appendix B - Scheme Overview Plan
	05(a) - Appendix C - Strategy for Delivery
	05(a) - Appendix D - Islington Park Consultation Plan

	5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone - Street Lighting Column - Rob Owen
	8a Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Rough Sleepers Scheme - Mark Hart
	08(a) - Going out to Tender - RSAP


